
COAST LIFE SUPPORT DISTRICT 
P.O. Box 1056, Guolalo. CA 95445 
Tel: (707) 884- 1829 Fox: 884-9119 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

38901 Ocean Drive, Gualala, CA 95445 - Bill Plott Tra ining Room 
>>> 4 PM, Moy 21, 2018 <<< 

(moved up one week to avoid Memorial Doy) 

1. Coll to Order 

2. Adoption of the agenda 

3. Minutes Approval 

4. Privilege of the floor 

5. New Business 
o. FY l9 Preliminary Budget 
b . Resolution 253 - Adoption of the FY19 Preliminary Budget 
c. Resolution 254 - Adoption of the FY 19 Ambula nce Rotes 
d. Resolution 255 - Adoption of the FY 19 Tax Rotes 

6. Reports: 
a. Finance: YTD 

i. Wittman ambulance revenue - YTD 
ii. Expenses 

b . Communication Committee 
i. New CLSD website - beta testing 

c. M HA update - deferred 

d. C ustomer Survey Report: 

7. Old Business 
o . Measure E update 
b. Board goals 

8. DA I Ops report 
o. Ambulance run data 

- Info only 
- Info only 
- Info only 

b. DA Summary Report - read in advance and will hove Q & A 

Hughes 

Hughes 

Hughes 

Hughes 

Coley/Beaty 

Beaty 

Bower/And re 

Tittte 

Caley 

Hughes/Caley 
Hughes 

Coley 

9. NEXT MEETINGS: Scheduled Board of Director meetings are held routinely scheduled on the 41h Monday of the month 
at 4:00 PM al the CLSD Bill Platt Training Center unless otherwise noted. Upcoming meetings are: 

Jun 25, 2018 
July 23- 2018 
Aug 27,2018 

10. Adjourn 

I 



COAST LIFE SUPPORT DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 1056 • Gualala, California 95445 

www.clsd.ca.gov 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
April 30111 , 2018 

Call to Order: Director Hughes called the meeting to order at 4:32 p.m.at the North Gualala Water 
Company (38958 Cypress Way, Gualala, Ca. 95445). Present: Directors: Andre, Bower, Beaty, Schwartz, 
Tittle. and Villagomez. Also, present: Ops Manager Evan Dilks, and Executive Assistant Robin Bean. 
Excused absence: District Administrator Caley. 

Adoption of the Agenda: Director Beaty moved to adopt the agenda and seconded by Director Andre. 
All ayes. 

Approval of Mar 26th, 2018 Board Minutes: Director Schwartz moved to approve the Mar 26th meeting 
minutes and was seconded by Director Tittle. All ayes. 

Privilege of the Floor - Public Comment: 

• A Proclamation of Thanks to Richard Perry: BOD Hughes read a proclamation to retiring 
board member Richard Perry, honoring his leadership, dedication, sacrifice, heart, and 
commitment. He will surely be missed. 

Achievements: 
• Has always had a passion for healthcare in his 40 years as a resident 
• Was in charge of the very successful "RCMS Gott Tournament & Car Auction· for 

3 years, which raised in one year -104K (2000-2003) 
• Was part of a Citizen's Group (2012) when the issue of weekend Urgent Care 

and critical access hospital emerged 
• Was appointed to the CLSD BOD in 2013 
• Made a motion to put funding of Urgent Care on the ballot with a possible 3/3 

split and ended in 6/1 (Measure J) 
• Worked diligently for the passage of Measure J (passed in 2014 with more than a 

213rd approval). Providing up to 160K in future spending for weekday and 
weekend Urgent Care. 

• Lead the effort of keeping the tax rate for Urgent Care below the limit (for 3 
years). 

• Lead the Joint Operations Group ( JOG) between CLSD, St Joseph's Hospital 
and RCMS to coordinate ways to improve our local rural healthcare infrastructure 

o Richard Perry shared his appreciation and gratitude of the Board of Directors, his 
confidence in the newly appointed Director Villagomez, the leadership and proficiency of 
the District Administrator and overall competence of this CLSD Board of Directors. He 
ended with thanking the entire BOD's for their continued services. 

• John Bower (community member) spoke of Caltrans proposed improvements to Highway/streets 
(Gualala area) that will result in less parking. Bower's belief is that this proposal will have a 
negative impact. Bowers encouraged everyone lo read the Caltrans Survey that was placed with 
the !CO. He is asking for all local business and residents to oppose Caltrans plans. Bowers has 
come up with alternative parking plans to offset the loss of parking. He extended an invite to all 
who are interested in attend an upcoming meeting to address these issues. 

New Business: Presentation 

a. Sonoma County grant: Supervisor Lynda Hopkins: 12k approved in support for our EMT 
Safety Net Program (funds expected in June). 



Old Business: 

a. Measure E update: The Appropriations Limit measure is on ballot for both Counties CLSD has 
received the language for upcoming June 5"' ballot. Argument in favor was submitted. BOD and 
employees can only advertise factual ad's (educational or informational only). As private citizens 
can show support (must state ·as a private citizen"). 

b. Discussion: potential non-voting Community Member appointed to BOD: A discussion last 
BOD meeting in regards to the idea of 1 or 2 community members serving on the Board (following 
the same policy and supporting the mission as BO D's). County Counsel was consulted to confirm 
such action complied with our enabling legislation. County Counsel advised not to take such 
action to create such a position (the primary reason is the BOD is composed on only seven 
seats). Director Beaty asked to table this idea for the time being for potential future discussion 
when more is clarified on the subject (added to the goals). 

c. Board goals - Board goals reviewed for progress/status. All are in progress or have been 
completed. Items discussed: training room completion, crew quarter revamped, rebranding /logo, 
website completion, EMR & EMT Classes, etc. 

d. Medicare billing for transports to RCMS - update: No update at this time regarding the 
Medicare billing for transports to RCMS (appeal sent out to the previously received denial letter 
as a non-hospital providing emergency services). Update to be added to future agenda. 

Reports: 

a. Finance: YTD 

i. Wittman ambulance revenue - FY18: The "Wittman CLSD (YTD} Report" was 
reviewed. March gross charges $272,061 . Net receipts received for March $40,754 

ii. Expenses - FY17 YTD: Expenses continue to be within budget. 

b. P&L Actuals vs Budget: FY17 Report: 

i. Board of Directors reviewed the "P&L Actuals vs Budget" Report. 

ii. Ambulance dispatch and transport data YTD: There were (50) transports in March with a 
cumulative volume of (422). There were (72) billable incidents with cumulative volume of 
(493). 

c. 180+ Day Aging: In February, E.A. Bean reviewed aging claim (120+ day aging). The NR 
Balance at $518,423, when adjusted down for the CSM transports in limbo (-$45K) is $473,423. 
A new list of aging claims is currently underway (-36k up for review at next Sub-Finance 
Committee). E. A. Bean continues to monitor and take the correct course of action regarding the 
aging claims. 

d. Communications Committee: Focus continues to be toward Measure E. Rebranding/Logo is 
being tabled at this point (budget and ideas) pending future discussion. 

e. MHA - Video conferencing is schedule soon to be installed in CLSD's training room (for training 
and public use}. RCMS has reached out to a law firm and working to become a non-profit. May is 
Heart Health Month. 



Customer Survey feedback: - Deferred (due to the absence of DA Caley) 

DA report: 
a. Ambulance run data - Deferred 
b. DA Summary Report - read in advance and Q & A during meeting. Deferred. 

Next Board of Directors Meeting: 4pm 

Monday, May 21"', 2018 - Regular time: 4 pm (41h Monday is Memorial Day) 
Monday. June 25"', 2018 
Monday, July 23"', 2018 

Adjournment: at 5:34 pm. Director Schwartz moved for adjournment, Director Tittle seconded, all ayes. 

Minutes Approved: 

_ ______ (Date) __________________________ _ 



CLSO P1t!Em.ina1y8ud8~ • May 17, 2013 

Actual 8Udit\ Am.1al Budget Budget 
FY17 FV17 F718 FV18 F:Y-19 FY18 vs FY19 " projected Changes Change 

Income (exceptions co taxes) Draft O,att 

Actual 9,wtoet Actual 8udHt Budget 
4"000 CUC> Speclel lilies 

400J Mfl'ldod11Q CC1411tty Taxn 

4004 Mtit-dcxlno A.mbulfn,e Tax 473,924 474,012 440,340 477,664 4]7,61>4 000, 

4009 M~clcxlro Utgtnt Care fp: 335,9\5 335.168 312.294 337,927 H7;927 "'""' 4010 ~idotl 1>0 Sp~I~ T .ix 96,473 9-V~72 92,99S 91,672 n.<>12 ·-Tota:14001 Mendoc.lno Countv Taxe 906,312 901.,852 8415,629 908,263 908,263 °" - ----4002 Son,o,m,a(Qllnt)' Tax~, 

4024 sonomaA'l'lbufenceleJ( 371,503 368,632 3S.4,S69 372,856 372,85-6 ().,01),-; 

4029 sonorN ureent Cati!!' Tax 303,329 302,795 28'9,663 3014,922 30 4,922 •. -
To1el 4002 SOi\OmaCountyTaxe, 6741,832 671,427 6441,232 677,778 671,778 ... 

To tal 4000 ClSO Spedll Taxes 1,S81,14S 1,57!1,2'9 1,489,861 l,S!6,041 1,586,041 ... 
4100 lntere$t l 'lC.OIM 1'9 120 lSO (ISO} 
4200 Amb11/ar,c• lncom• 

\f\ 4201 Atnbulence TratHpott BIiii 'ICS ·2,562,675 575,576 2,204,114 600,000 700,000 100,000 17.37% 
4220Wriledow\wlt · Mist (96,201} (58,132) 
4225 Ylr!l~S-Med:Ca.t/C-61 (1,6S9,719l (1,521,593) 
4228 Wrlt~M-01-sttitt filf:$ldent OlS(Otll\l (40,000 140,000 40,000 ·100.00,,. 

To tal 4201 Ambul1nu Transport Billinp 806,754 535,576 624,390 S60 000 700000 140,000 M.14" 
Toc:.14200 Ambut1nee 1.Mome ICNt,75-1 535,57' 560,000 24,424 ...... 

4400 ~sc-ellaneousln<ome 42,S86 '2,150 18,321 - 3,000 10,000 7,000 - US,561' 
44 10 ln1crgo\>ernm~ntalTrllnSj)Ort (IG'T) 139,190 81,500 139,790 (139,790) ·111.52'1 
44200,ound t-netg Med Tr-6n$p6,rt 38,480 10,000 20,000 25,000 5,000 "'·"°' 4420GEMT ·58523 (CW:) 130,0QO 28,000 

Unappli~ Caih Pa'(rt'lf!()t hcome 
Totol l ncom# 1,608,904 2, 202,SOS 2,132,693 2,438,981 1,349,041 (10J,5J6J <4.1D'I 

Expenses -
$000 W-,.sand Bendu 

S200 HH!th lnsur-¥\Cc 119,634 96,000 106,UO 108,000 108,000 0.000 

S300 Pll)'roll Taxes Emplo·,'Cl"Costs 33,664 31,057 30,296 32,124 36, 407 4,283 f).1991 

S350 PERS Employer Cost$ 116,167 117,59S 87,309 91,069 iOl,613 10.549 

···"' 5-105 Admtnlwauon Sila"r•, 210,897 188,779 225,597 199,S33 23?,1$4 32,571 17,U~ 
S405.1 Mm:n Strarles•Alloc:•tetoVC (U,681} 122,68111 22,71.4 (23,858 t23,8S8) o.""" 

5410Ambulence()pefitlontWages - S79,693 - 599,482 -- 622,961 - 615.379 639,374 13,995 -- "·"" 



CLSO PrellmJnary 8uditt · May 17, 2018 

5430 Extra Otlty/Stlpmd P~ 
- - -

(264) n.aos t.3,620 4S,068 55.$00 10,732 
~'160 Other Compen»tlon 
SSOOWo-rkComp ln.su~1tce 44 91,)6 3MSO '39,S92 l9,S92 <113,113 3,521 

Tou l SOOO w.,., ind 81n1fiu l,082,076 1.,073,990 l,S.79,439 1, 106,957 1, 242,601 135,651 
6000 Ambul•I\C• Op1r1tions/ 66000 p1yroll up ,02 

6030 Med/tat Oi.rettor J:ce,r,on AHUC l7,800 31,$00 37,800 l7,aoo 37,800 
60-40 C>lspatch SeNlices 32,H& 31,0 20 22,497 23,SOO 21,545 I U,955) 
6050 Mist P.elmburs.me·m 402 • 
6100 su,r(on/Crew 6:penm/1.JC & PEAMtTS 1S5 

0101 f<1tllltvR~r& Mfll'\tenal'fC• 13,123 1,89? 9,400 9,400 
6102 f<1tllltvfu(nlture 135 2,227 10,000 tl0,OO0> 
5100 Unif(Wrl.S& Med Tests S,92S s.- 3,413 ··- 5,000, ·-i 6110 ~o,p,l!es, Rental, Cleaning flt< 13,33-6 21,800 6,iSS 13,000 U ,000 ··-6210 VehlcfeR~r & Mal11.tenance. 21,9&4 15,000 18,103 18,000 18,000 ··-6240 Vehide:fuel t0,444 15,000 24,550 lS,000 lS,000 
6410 R&dios& comm tq<JJp 2,551 8, 100 4,475 4,000 •,ooo 
6510 Mtdlol Suppl!ts& Equipmen? 28,868 28,900 li,976 24,000 24,000 
6S i 1 C&$)4t411 Re-pflcffllent fund 25,000 (25.000J 
6980 Misc. Employee Trainl.n.g E1,{)eM~ 2,362 10100 544 6.000 6,000 

Tot.t 6000 Ambul11nc• Op.rat ion s 169,196 
-

172,720 154, 199 190,100 ISl,745 (36,955 ) 

6700 Owrhn d/Admlnlsttllion/ 691 1 fGTfXP. 

G' II 
6180 Utllitle.s U,015 12,000 14,676 16,SOO 14,000 (2,500) 
6 UI& T elephosi,e 6, 237 12,000 8,267 6,000 6,000 
6300 1-,sural'l(e 16,259 16,350 20,555 17,000 17,000 
6714 '1420G£MT ,S&5231Qtl.fee) , .ooo I 7,000 
6713 Ambui.,nce 81 lllrt,g 40,428 33,031 34, 184 38, 7Sl 39,000 247 
6718 Office Supp/Equip/Sot.ware l,870 5,300 (15) 

S,000 
s.ooo 

6718,1 Offi,ceSuPP:lt; 1,S0S 3.•43 
&718,2 Compu;er Equlpmen; 2,816 3,000 3,000 
&118.3 $oftw¥e 1,023 3,214 1,S1S , .... I 1 ,425 

6120 8o¥d bpf'C\ses 553 5,000 151 2,soo 2,500 0.-1 
6130 C'oflwfrarm 

6734 11' 6,01S 6,1S0 5,? 18 10,SOO 5,700 {4,800) 

"~ 
673SE"MSS41Ney 1,041 2,06 2,060 3,SOO 3,500 . """" 67 37 Fin!ndll/SOOl:kffpir'IC- 14,622 14,000 630 5,000 3.000 12,000) •14 l . 
6738 l tell 19, 736 10,000 4,9 15 10,000 ··- iS,000) •50,oo,f 
6740Al.ld·t 8,500 10,500 8,500 9,100 600 '·"" 6741 TaxAdl"'linhtu1tlon •N8S 10, 302 10,345 12,817 10,430 10,4:30 0 

670 8M1\(Mereh.11ntf.ff~ 2,567 1,000 1,477 1,000 1,200 200 
67SS Pri0p,ertyT1x Adrnlt1-lstr61ion • Coun11es. 17,780 27,785 12,SV 29,000 20,000 i9,000) •32.39" 
6760 Educatton/P,ofe!$1onl1 Dev u 2,.500 773 l,500 2,500 .. , 
6765 Election Co~ts/Rmrv-e 10,000 47,000 5,000 i42,000) -420.~) 



CtSDPrel1m1naryaudg_e1 •MaV 17, 20 18 

--- --
6'170 Ou~ Subscription,, Mef'l"bershfp s,9g2 4;500 9,00S 10,000 10,000 o.~ 
6788 f(l,Mi11c& ~prod11.cfot1 35~ 2,000 1, 175 10,000 S,000 (S,0001 ·250.00, 

6795 Tra..-el/rra!'ISi)()rtatlon 2,'1Sl 1,SOO 3, 721 3,000 3,000 0.001< 
6970 Co.fM')Ul'li tyO~/Tf8ll'lil'lg U,201 4,500 10,730 MOO 10.000 1,000 22,22'4 

Total 6700 0Verhead/Admfnh11ttlon -- 179,465 - 189,497 163,630 -- 249,758 189,930 (S ... 28) - ·3U7'4 

7000 Ur1en1 Ca,e 
7011 Admtn satarie-s•Altoc to UC 22,681 22,681 22, '13•1 23.8S8 23,858 . 0.00, 

70SOUCC01l-trt1et 624.756 624.738 691.860 754,738 7Sit,738 . 0 ---
Total 7000 Urpnt Care 647,437 647,419 714,594 778,596 778,596 . o . 
aooo lnt e ru t Ell,,.ns. - - 4,003 - 4,086 3,U2 - l,000 3,000 ---- - 0.000 . 
8005 EMS lnte,et &pen~ ---- 1.500 1,500 

Tot d 8000 l!lte rest Expense 4,00-8 4,086 3, 132 4,500 4,500 . 0.oo, 

9S00 Depr~a.tlon Elcpens:.e 76,?59 80,194 92,119 9 2,119 83.3,tg (8,771) - ·10 .... --
999 Prlo: P«iod Adju.stmtttttss 6,397 

ToUl Ellpen,es 2,165,33-8 2, 168,506 2,307, 112 2,422,630 2,452,727 30,097 1.19' 

Ntt 09ttadnJ Inc om• 443,56,6 33,999 (174,420) 16,351 1103,616) (133,613) ·lt2., 

OtMr Mlscellaneous bpeo~ 
NI!'! 0th« fncome 

N•t lncom• 443,5'6 '3,'}99 (174,420) 16,:151 flOl,616) (133,613) •lU."'6 

--.J 
llUOGET BIIOGET BUDGn BUDGET 

FY17 F718 FY18 FV19 

EMSIMomt 1,56-4,542 1,S30,736- 1,796,132 1,, 0,,192 

"EMSEilptinse 1 521,087 1 592 .519 1 644 034 1 674,131 

- - _ __._ -- -
EMSNet 43,455 (61,783) 152,098 32,061 

- -- --- ---- --
UClrteom• 637;96!J 6-01,957 642,849 642,849 

UC:E,xpense 6,47 419 714 .594 771.596 778,59' 

Uctl<l 19,4 56 {1 12,637) ~135.747 (135_,747 



COAST LIFE SUPPORT DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION No: 253 

ADOPTION OF PRELIMINARY BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

WHEREAS, Coast Life Support District Board of Directors, Finance Committee and Staff 
have reviewed the current financial position for the past year, and 

WHEREAS, the District has a need to maximize its revenues, including maintaining the 
benefit assessment special tax rates as approved by the voters fur, E~ rgency Medical 
Services, and 

WHEREAS, the District has reviewed the Ambulance billing charges, in order to 
maximize revenue while maintaining rates consistent-With ~ dical eos1't flation, 

WHEREAS, the District will not require the full assessment as authorized~ Urgent 
Care services in order to fully fund the curreiit-prog~m an~ovide adequate 'funds for 
development of the presently envisioned Urgent Gar~\'.:og~ d any othe¾~ t~ zed 
use.and ~ , y 
WHEREAS, Reserve funding should~~ain at present level5.,!o support contingencies 
and capital replacement requirements, n Iii,"\. 

WHEREAS, Coast Life Support District an icipates Rev.enues of ' e following: 

Sonoma Cou9t~ $6TT,77fi! 
Mendocino County $908J63 
Ambulance B"llings $700,000 
Miscellaneous 63 000 

Total Budgeted )2,349,041 

WHEREAS, the following Expe~ itures will provide the resources necessary to meet the 
estal:'>lis~ objectives for the next Fiscal Year: 

Ambulance Operation 
Administration & Overhj ad 
Urgent Care Program 
Interest &'Del:)reciation/ 
Reserve Fund Decr.ea$e 

Total Budget~d Expenditures 

$1,396,353 
$ 189,930 
$ 778,596 
$ 87,848 
$ (103.686) 
$2,349,041 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorize its Officers, Administrator and 
Staff to make expenditures necessary to operate the Ambulance service and all 
Authorized programs, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors authorized the above amounts 
for the Coast Life Support District's Budget for Fiscal Year 2019. 



The above resolution was introduced by Director Schwartz, who moved its adoption, 
seconded by Director Beaty, and passed and adopted on this 261h day of June 2017 by 
the following roll call vote: 

Directors: Hughes Aye No Abstain 
Beaty Aye No Abstain 
Bower Aye No Abstain 
Schwartz Aye No Abstain 
Tittle Aye No Abstain 
Villagomez Aye No 

~ ain Andre Aye No lain 

Ayes: Noes: Abstain: Absent: 

WHEREUPON, the President declared the foregoing RESOLUTION adOQted and SO 
ORDERED. 



COAST LIFE SUPPORT DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 254 

ADOPTION OF AMBULANCE RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

WHEREAS, the Coast Life Support District last adjusted the rates at which Ambulance Services 
are billed in June of 2016, and 

WHEREAS, with the passage of AB 2091 Berg, as of January 1, 2007, the District may charge 
Residents and Taxpayers of the District a Fee for Service Rate less than that of Non-Residents 
and Non-Taxpayers, and 

WHEREAS, the District recognizes the disparity between what a Residentrraxpayer actually pays 
for services versus what a Non-Resident/Non-Taxpayer pays, by their parcel tax contribution, and 

WHEREAS, as Residentrraxpayer is defined as either having a mailing address within the District 
or owning property within the District or both, 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the rate schedule adopted, effective July 1, 2017 and in 
effect until changed by resolution, be as follows: 

Service BLS ALS I ALS II 
Non-Emergency $1,381 $2,726 
Emergency $1,887 $3,258 $3,814 
Night $130 $415 $415 

Mileage $36 $36 $36 
Oxygen $162 $162 $162 

EKG $227 $227 
T real & Release $250 $500 
Late Payment Fee $25 $25 $25 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Resident/Taxpayers will receive a fifty percent reduction 
of the balance owed after third-party payments, if any, and if that reduced balance is paid in full 
within sixty days. 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that for transport of a Resident/Taxpayer which does not 
leave the District, the balance owed after third party payments will not exceed fifty percent of the 
sum of the applicable Treat & Release fee plus mileage charge. 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that these charges be reviewed annually and changes 
included in the Budget for the following year. 

The above RESOLUTION was introduced by Director Hughes, who moved for its adoption, 
seconded by Director Schwartz, and passed on this 25" day of June, 2018, 

WHEREUPON, the President dedared the foregoing RESOLUTION adopted and SO ORDERED. 

Naomi Schwartz. Secretary 

See attached Level of Service definitions applicable to said rates. 

/0 



Level of Service 

It is the responsibility of t he Biller to review the documentation on t he Patient Care Report and 
determine the appropriate level of service that was provided to the patient. This is a very 
important step in the billing process. The level of service is determined in the following ways: 

• Emergent Response VS Non Emergent Response 
• The type of assessment that was provided (i.e. ALS or BLS) 
• The type of interventions that were performed (i.e. ALS or BLS) 

• The patient's chief complaint 
• You must look at the whole picture to determine the level of service 

Emergency VS Non-Emergency 
An Emergency level of ambulance service depends upon how the ambulance was dispatched 
and how it responded. An Emergency is determined based on the information available to the 
dispatcher at the time of the call, using standard dispatch protocols. 

Definition of Emergency 

The patient's condition is an emergency that renders the patient unable to go to t he hospital by 
other means. Emergency ambulance services are services provided after the sudden onset of a 
medical condition. Acute signs and/or symptoms of sufficient severity must manifest t he 
emergency medical condit ion such that the absence of immediate medica l attention could 
reasonably be expected to result in one or more of the following: 

• Place the patient's health in serious jeopardy. 
• cause serious impairment to bodily functions. 
• Cause serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or part. 

The above definition has been extended to include responding immediately. 

Emergency response means responding immediately at the BLS or ALS1 level of service to a 911 
call or the equivalent in areas without a 911 call system. An immediate response is one in which 
the ambulance supplier begins as quickly as possible to take the steps necessary to respond to 
the call. 

Non-Emergency 

Medical Necessity 

Ambulance services are covered in the absence of an emergency condition in either of the two 
general categories of circumstances that follow: 

The patient being transported has, at the time of ground transport, a condition such that all 
other methods of ground transportation (e.g., taxi, private automobile, wheelchair van or other 
vehicle) are contraindicated. In this circumstance, "contraindicated" means that the patient 
cannot be transported by any other means from the origin to the destination without 
endangering the individual's health. Having or having had a serious illness, injury or surgery 
does not necessarily justify Medicare payment for ambulance transportation; thus a t horough 
assessment and documented description of the patient's current state is essential for coverage. 
All statements about the patient's medical condition must be validated in the documentation 
using contemporaneous objective observations and findings. 

/( 



The patient is bed-<:onfined before, during and after transportation. The definition of "bed
confined" means the patient must meet all of the following three criteria: 

• Unable to get up from bed without assistance. 

• Unable to ambulate. 
• Unable to sit in a chair (including a wheelchair). 

As stated in the bullet above, statements about the patient's bed-bound status must be 
validated in the record with contemporaneous objective observations and findings as to the 
patient's functional physical and/or mental limitations that have rendered him bed-bound. 

Levels of Service 
There are 6 levels of service that can be provided to the patient. ALS1 Emergency, ALS2 
Emergency, BLSE Emergency, SCT (Specialty Care Transport), ALS Non-Emergency, BLS Non 
Emergency. 

Advanced Life Support (ALSl) Level 1 

An ALS ambulance has complex, specia lized, life-sustaining equipment and, ordinarily, 
equipment for radiotelephone contact with a physician or hospital. Typically, this type of 
ambulance would require mobile coronary care units and other ambulance vehicles that are 
appropriately equipped and staffed by personnel trained and authorized to administer IVs, 
provide anti-shock trousers, establish and maintain a patient's airway, defibrillate the heart, 
relieve pneumothorax conditions, and perform other advanced life support procedures or 
services such as cardiac (EKG) monitoring. The ambulance must be staffed by at least two 
people, one of whom must be certified by the state of local authority as an EMT-Intermediate 
or an EMT-Paramedic. 

ALS assessment is an assessment performed by an ALS crew as part of an emergency response 
that was necessary because the patient's reported condition at the t ime of dispatch was such 
that only an ALS crew was qualified to perform the assessment. An ALS assessment does not 
necessarily result in a determination that the patient requires an ALS level of service. 

ALS Intervention - ALS Intervention: A procedure that is, in accordance with state and local 
laws, required to be furnished by ALS personnel. The service must be medically necessary to 
qualify as an intervention for payment of an ALS level of services. 
ALSl - ALS, Level 1 A0427: Where medically necessary, transportation by ground ambulance 
vehicle, medically necessary supplies and services, and either an ALS assessment by ALS 
personnel or the provision of at least one ALS intervention. EMT-Intermediate scope includes 
but is not limited to: 

• Administration of IV fluids (except blood or blood products). 
o Note: An unsuccessful attempt to perform an ALS intervention (e.g., 

endotracheal intubat ion was attempted, but was unsuccessful) may qualify the 
transport for billing at the appropriate ALS level provided that the intervention 
would have been reasonable and necessary had it been successful. 

• Peripheral venous puncture. 

• Blood drawing. 
• Monitoring IV solutions during transport that contain potassium. 

/Z.. 



• Administration of approved medications, IV, Sub Q, sublingual, nebulizer inhalation, IM 
(limited to deltoid and thigh sites only). 

Advanced Life Support (ALS2) level 2 

ALS2 - ALS, Level 2 A0433: Where medically necessary, transportation by ground ambulance 
vehicle, medically necessary supplies and services, and at least t hree separate administrations 
of one or more medications by intravenous push/bolus or by continuous infusion, excluding 
crystalloid hypotonic, isotonic and hypertonic solutions {dextrose, normal saline, or Ringer's 
lactate); by intravenous push/bolus or by continuous infusion excluding crystalloid hypotonic, 
isotonic and hypertonic solutions (dextrose, normal saline, or Ringer's lactate); or 
transportation, medically necessary supplies and services, and the provision of at least one of 
the following procedures: 

• Manual defibrillation/cardio version 
• Endotracheal intubation 

• Central venous line 
• Cardiac pacing 
• Chest decompression 
• Surgical airway 
• lntraosseous line 

Note: An unsuccessful attempt to perform an ALS intervention (e.g., endotracheal intubation 
was attempted, but was unsuccessful) may qualify the transport for billing at the appropriate 
ALS level provided that the intervention would have been reasonable and necessary had it been 
successful. 

Note: Crystalloid fluids include fluids such as 5 percent Dextrose in water, Saline and Lactated 
Ringer's. Medications that are administered by other means, for example: 
intramuscular/subcutaneous injection, oral, sublingually or nebulized, do not qualify to 
determine whether the ALS2 level rate is payable. However, this is not an all-inclusive list. 
Likewise, a single dose of medication administered fractionally (i.e., one-third of a single dose 
quantity) on three separate occasions does not qualify for the ALS2 payment rate. The criterion 
of multiple administrations of the same drug requ ires a suitable quantity and amount of time 
between administrations that is in accordance with standard medical practice guidelines. The 
fractional administration of a single dose (for this purpose meaning a standard or protocol 
dose) on three separate occasions does not qualify for ALS2 payment. 

Manual External Defibrillator units are used in conjunction with (or more often have inbuilt) 
electrocardiogram readers, which the healthcare provider uses to diagnose a cardiac condition 
(most often fibrillation or tachycardia although there are some other rhythms which can be 
treated by different shocks). The healthcare provider will then decide what charge {in joules) to 
use, based on proven guidelines and experience, and will deliver the shock through paddles or 
pads on the patient's chest. As they require detailed medical knowledge, these units are 
generally only found in hospitals and on some ambulances In the United States, many advanced 
EMTs and all paramedics are trained to recognize lethal arrhythmias and del iver appropriate 
electrical therapy w ith a manual defibrillator when appropriate. 

Cardioversion is a medical procedure by which an abnormally fast heart rate or cardiac 
arrhythmia is converted to a normal rhythm is using electricity or drugs 

,~ 



Endotracheal Intubation is a procedure by which a tube is inserted through the mouth down 
into t he trachea (the large airway from the mouth to the lungs). Before surgery, this is often 
done under deep sedation. In emergency situations, the patient is often unconscious at the 
time of this procedure. 

Central Venous Line is a long fine catheter with an opening (sometimes multiple openings) at 
each end used to deliver fluids and drugs. The central line is inserted through the skin into a 
large vein that feeds into a larger vein sitting above the heart, so that the tip of the catheter sits 
close to the heart. There are several veins that are suitable for access, and the line may be 
inserted above or below the collarbone, on the side of your neck, in your groin or at the front of 
the elbow. The actual skin entry site depends on which vein is used. The line that is inserted at 
the e lbow is called a PICC {Peripherally Inserted Central Catheter), and the lines that enter the 
shoulder o r neck are called Central Venous Lines. 

Cardiac Pacing is a temporary means of pacing a patient's heart during a medical emergency. It 
is accomplished by delivering pulses of electric current through the patient's chest, which 
stimulates the heart to contract. The most common indication for cardiac pacing is an 
abnormally slow heart rate. 

Chest Decompression involves decompression of the affected chest cavity to release the 
pressure that has developed. Decompression can be achieved, with minimal risk, by the 
insertion of a 14 or 16 gauge needles into the second inter-costal space at the midclavicular 
line. The needle must be inserted superior to the rib because the intercostal artery, vein and 
nerve follow along the inferior portion of the rib. 
Surgical Airway is also known as Crycothyroidotomy. The simplest technique is needle 
cricothyroidotomy. Th is involves placing a 12 gauge cannula into the trachea via the 
cricothyroid membrane. This will allow adequate ventilation for up to 45 minutes. 

lntraosseous line is the process of injecting directly into the marrow of t he bone. The needle is 
injected through the bone's hard cortex and into the soft marrow inte rior. Often the antero
media l aspect of the tibia is used as it lies just under the skin and can easily be palpated and 
located. Anterior aspect of the femur and the superior iliac crest are other sites that can be 
used. 

Basic Life Support Emergency (BLSE) 

BLSE A0429 - is transportation by ground ambulance vehicle and the provision of medically 
necessary supplies and services, including BLS ambulance services as defined by the state. The 
ambulance must be staffed by an individual who is qualified in accordance with state and local 
laws as an EMT-Basic. These laws may vary from state to state or within a state. For example, 
only in some jurisdictions is an EMT-Basic permitted to operate limited equipment onboard the 
vehicle, assist more qualified personnel in performing assessments and interventions, and 
establish an IV line. 

Emergency- When medically necessary, t he provision of BLS services, as specified above, in the 
context of an emergency response. An emergency response is one that, at the time the 
ambulance provider or supplier is called, it responds immediately. An immediate response is 
one in which the ambulance provider/supplier begins as quickly as possible to take the steps 
necessary to respond to the call. 

(q 



Specialty Care Transport (SCT) 
SCT A0434- is the interfacility transportation of a critically injured or ill beneficiary by a ground 
ambulance vehicle, including the provision of medically necessary supplies and services, at a 
level of service beyond the scope of the EMT-Paramedic. SCT is necessary when a beneficiary's 
condition requires ongoing care that must be furnished by one or more health professionals in 
an appropriate specialty area, for example, emergency or critical care nursing, emergency 
medicine, respiratory 

Advance Life Support Non-Emergency 
ALS Non-Emergency (ALSl H-H) A0426-Where medically necessary, transportation by ground 
ambulance vehicle, medically necessary supplies and services and either an ALS assessment by 
ALS personnel or the provision of at least one ALS intervention. EMT Intermediate scope 
includes but not limited to: 

• Administration of IV fluids (except blood or blood products). 

• Peripheral venous puncture. 
• Blood drawing. 
• Monitoring IV solutions during transport that contain potassium. 
• Administration of approved medications, IV, Sub Q, sublingual, nebul izer inhalation, IM 

(limited to deltoid and thigh sites only) . 

Basic Life Support Non-Emergency 
BlSl Non-Emergency A0428- Basic Life Support (BLS): Medically necessary transportation by 
ground ambulance vehicle and medically necessary supplies and services, plus the provision of 
BLS ambulance services. The ambulance must be staffed by an individual who is qualified in 
accordance with state and local laws as an Emergency Medical Technician-Basic (EMT-Basic). 
These laws may vary from state to state. For example, only in some states is an EMT-Basic 
permitted to operate limited equipment on board the vehicle, assist more qualified personnel 
in performing assessments and interventions, and establish a Peripheral Intravenous (IV) line. 

BLSl level of service would be used if the response was not immediate. You may see the 
patient transported to one of the following. 

• Skilled Nursing Facility 

• Residence 
• Dialysis Center 
• Clinic 
• Scheduled appointment 

• Hospital 

ft; 



COAST LIFE SUPPORT DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION No. 255 

ADOPTION OF TAX RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 

WHEREAS, in March 2012 the voters of the Coast Life Support District authorized the District 
Board of Directors to levy a Special Tax of up to $44 per benefit unit to support Emergency 
Medical Services, and 

WHEREAS, in April 2014, the voters of the District approved a Special Tax assessment of up 
to $74 for a developable parcel, and $148 for a developed parcel, to support Urgent Care, and 

WHEREAS, the District's budget for Fiscal Year 2016 requires a Special Tax rate of $44 per 
unit of benefit for Emergency Medical Services and $57.50/$115.00 Special Tax for 
developable/developed parcels to support Urgent Care, 

BE IT RESOLVED, THEREFORE that the Special Tax rate of $44 per unit of benefit for 
Emergency Medical Services. plus $57 .50/$115.00 per developable/developed parcel for 
Urgent Care, be assessed accordingly to parcels in the District, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Coast Life Support District renews its agreements with 
the appropriate offices of Mendocino and Sonoma Counties for collections of the assessments 
through the property tax rolls. 

The above RESOLUTION was introduced by Director Schwartz, who moved for its adoption, 
seconded by Director Beaty and passed on this 25th day of June 2018 by the following roll call 
vote: 

Directors: 

Ayes: 

Hughes 
Beaty 
Bower 
Schwartz 
Tittle 
Villagomez 
Andre 

Noes: 

Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 

Abstain: 

No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 

Absent: 

Abstain 
Abstain 
Abstain 
Abstain 
Abstain 
Abstain 
Abstain 

WHEREUPON, the President declared the foregoing RESOLUTION adopted and SO 
ORDERED. 

Naomi Schwartz, Secretary 



Units 

0 
1 
3 
4 

6 
8 
10 
20 

Units 
0 
1 
2 

Tax 

$0 
$44 
$132 
$176 
$264 
$352 
$440 
$880 

Tax 
$0 

Coast Life Support District Special Tax Structure 

By CLSD Board of Directors Resolution 255 

June 2018 

Ambulance Service Annual Tax Rate - $44/Unit 

Land Use 

Ag/Timber/Resource/Vacant- Not Buildable 
Vacant Buildable 
Single Family Dwelling 
Ag with Development- House or Outbuildings 
Duplex 
Trailer Park/Apartments/Institution 
Store/Commercial Enterprise 
Hotel/Motel/Restaurant/Golf Course/Gas Station/Theater 

Urgent Care Annual Tax Rate--$57.50/Unit 

Land Use 
Ag/Timber/Resource/Vacant- Not Buildable 

$57.50 Vacant Buildable 
$115 Developed 

11 



CLSD Al\1BULANCE REVENUE 
A ~ C !! J;_ F G - H ., I . ,l_ . K .. l,_ - M 

OTIIER 
MCARI? WIU1'£ MCAL \VRIT K COSTRACTUAl, DAD Of.BT OT Hf.R NEW~Vll 

RlLl,ABLR INCIDENTS CftARC:68 DOWNS DOWNS WRITE DOWNS )t.1ff CH '"G RS PAYME~rs RRM'DS Nl-..J PA \'Mf:NTS WRJTKOflo!S \VRITlt OITS m r 8A1ANCJ?: 
FY l7 
MAY 'H 36 M2,37 1 79,567 38,383 1,337 23.085 65,'43 230 65,513 32,757 J,076 446,364 
JUNF,'17 61 2S6.097 112.884 42,39,1 5.226 95.,593 32.542 220 32 322 509.635 
FYIS 
JULY'l7 60 239,510 135,540 45,593 13,973 44,404 62,0,14 . 62,114 34,781 i.988 I I 455, l67 
AUGUST' 17 78 292,985 132,529 6$,944 3.0S8 91,424 56,944 3.413 53,531 . 2,226 49$,286 
SEPTEMBER '17 4.l 158) 6' 61)82 35,655 1,954 59.273 12,870 104 72,767 . (9) 1,127 <182,959 
OCTOBER '17 31 $ 126,3$6 s 43,683 s 44.504 s 6,796 s 3l,373 s 56,086 s 177 s 55,909 $ s 4,346 s 200 s 4S4.247 
NOVEMBER '17 55 s 300,041 s 107)10 s 78,225 s (2,518) s 117,024 $ 49,971 $ 5S0 s 49,391 $ 17,124 s . s $ 504,156 
DF,ci;MBER '17 47 $ 172,167 s 69,416 s 63,344 s 3,929 s 35,478 $ 50,462 $ s 50,462 s s $ 4 s 489.176 
IANUARY 'IS 43 s 163)88 s 65,539 s 46 ,515 s 2,622 s 4$,? I J s 35,372 $ s 35.372 s 20,280 s $ . s 481,236 
FEBRUARY '18 53 $ 272,Sl5 s 109,275 s 6$.276 s 2,803 s 95,46 1 s 54,511 $ 23 s 54,487 s s $ . s 523,210 
~t~RCH'IS 72 s 27Z,061 s 148,108 t S 5,215 s 3,021 s 68,7S4 s 40,~54 s s 40,754 $ 32,164 s 653 ls s 518,423 

APR'l8 56 $ 206.528 s 105,159 S 46.44S s 3,024 s 51.89'i s so,06.~ I s . s 80,068 s s 3835 S 737 s 487,155 . 

FY'fo011le 538 2,204,115 977,94l 496,119 38,693 6'3,830 559,052 4,297 554,855 104,949 10,813 ,,306 

LRSt 12 Mon1b.s 635 2,602,583 1,170,391 sn.496 45,256 762,507 6S7,d37 4,748 65~,689 137,706 10,813 S,,381 

...... 
~ 

Monthly AHt11J:,~ 
54 220,4 11.48 ~.7911.05 49,671.90 3,869.25 64,3S2.98 55,91$.18 429,72 55,485.46 10,494.91 I.OS 1.28 430.SS 

FYT0D11te 

Monthly A,,ernge 
53 216,882 97,533 4$,12S 3,77L32 

!Ast 12 ·Months 
63-542 54,786 396 $4,391 11,476 901 448 



2:10 PM Coast Life Support District 

05112118 Profit & Loss Budget Overview 
Accrual Basis July 2017 through April 2018 

.Jul ·17 • Apr 18 Budget S Over Budget o/e>of Budget 

Ordinary Revenue/Expense 
Income 

4000 . CLSD Special Taxes 1,335,612.83 1,321,475.84 14,136.99 101.1¾ 

4100 . Interest Revenue 119.74 75.00 44.74 159.7¾ 
4200 . Ambulance Revenue 624,389.93 489,583.32 134,806.6 1 127.5%11 

4400 • Miscellaneous Revenue 15,147.87 2,500.00 12 ,647.87 605.9o/ofl 

4410 . lntergovermntl Transport(IGT) 139,790.00 66,666.66 73,123.34 209.7%EI 
4420 • Ground Em<>rg Med Transport 0.00 20,833.34 ·20,833.34 0.00/4 

Total Income 2,115,060.37 1.901.134.16 213,926.21 

Expense 
5000. Wagos and 8'lnof~s 944,351.94 940,449.87 3,902.07 100.4% 

6000 , Ambulanoe Operations 129,217.13 133,666.68 -4,449.55 96.7% 

66000 . Payroll Expenses 334.95 
6700 . OVerheadfAdministration 136,315.20 205,548.30 ·69,233. 10 66.3% 

6971 - !GT o.oo 
7000 • Urgent Care 647,900.00 647,885.00 15.00 100.0% 

8000 . Interest Expense 2,609.85 3 ,750.00 -1, 140 .15 69.6% 

9000 • Other Expenses 0 .00 
9500 • Depredation Expenso 76,589.34 76,765.82 -176.48 99.8% 
9999 . Prior Period Adjustment -6,307.58 0.00 -6,307.58 100.0¾ 

Total ExpenSG 1,931,010.83 2,008.065.67 •77,054.84 

Net Ordinary Oporating Surplus 184,049.54 -106,931.51 290,981.05 

Not Rovonuo 184,049.54 -106,931.51 II 290,981.05 -172.1% 

1. NET BILLING: "Ref Witlman YTD Report (DCC 4200+Coiumn F minus H/K/L). 

2. Aeven<Je due to CPR Program 

3. IGT Nol New Funds not )'81 recieved 

4. $10.833/mo -,cf;_ months • 597,497 fc:,- Urgent Care Increase and cove,ed by UC r8$""'8$. 

tO 



2:02 PM Coast Life Support District 

05/12/18 Profit & Loss Budget Overview 
Accrual Basis July 2017 through April 2018 

Jut '17 • Apr 18 Budget $ O.er Budget %of Budget 

Ordinary Rovenue/Expense 
Revenuo 

4000 • CLSD Special Taxes 
4001 . Mendocino Counfy Taxes 

4004. Mendocino Ambutanoe Tax 419,637.52 398,053.34 21,584.18 105.4% 
4009 • Mendocino Urgent Care Tax 297,332.32 281,605.84 15,726.48 105.6% 
4010 • Mendocino Ad Valor..,, Tax 87,328.98 n,22s.ss 10,102.32 113.w. ll 
4001 • Mendocino County Taxes • Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

Total 4001 . Mendocino County Taxes 804,298.82 756,885.84 47,412.98 

4002 . Sonoma County T axos 
4024 . Sonoma Ambulance Tax 292,471.43 3 10,488.34 -1 8,016.91 94.2% 
4029 • Sonoma Urgent Care Tax 238,842.58 254,101.66 -15,259.08 94.0% 

Tota_l 4002 • Sonom:t County Taxes 531,314.01 564,590.00 ·33,275.99 94.1% 

Total 4000. CLSD Special Taxes 1,335,612.83 1,321,475.84 14,136.99 

4100. interest Rovonue 119.74 75.00 44.74 159.7"/. 
4200 . Ambulance Revenue 

4201 . Amb Transport Billings 624,389.93 500,000.00 124,389.93 124.s%EI 

4228 . Wrttedowns-District Res. Disc. 0.00 - 10,416.68 10,4 16.68 0.0"/, 

Total 4200 • Ambulance Rovonue 624,389.93 489,583.32 134,806.61 

4400 . Miscellaneous Rev~nue 15,147.87 2,500.00 12,647.87 605.9o/.EI 

4410 . lntergovermntl Tran$f>Orl(IGT) 139,790.00 66,666.66 73,123.34 209.7% 
4420 • Ground EmOt'g Med Transport 0.00 20,833.34 -20,833.34 0.0% 

Total Rovonuo 2,115,060.37 1,901,134.16 213,926.21 

&pense 
5000 . Wages and Benefits 

5200 • Health Insurance 88,392.68 90,000.00 • 1,607.32 98.2% 
5300 . Payroll Taxes Emplr Costs 25,246.85 26,770.00 ·1,523.15 94.3% 
5350 • PERS Employer Costs 73,174.17 75,890.84 ·2,716.67 96.4¾ 
5405 . Administration Salaries 

5405.1 · Admin Salaries-Alloc/UC -18,936.70 -18,936.69 -0.01 100.0% 
5405 . Administration Sataries ~ Other 187,997.36 183,359.88 4,637.48 102.5% 

T otaJ 5406 . Administration Salaries 169,060.66 164,423.19 4,637.47 102.8% 

5410. Ambulance Operations Wages 519,134.26 5 12,815.84 6,318.42 101.2% 
5430 · EX1ra Duty/Stipend Pay/DA 36,350.22 37,556.66 •1,206.44 96.8% 

5500 • Wortc Comp lnsuranoo 32,993.10 32,993.34 -0.24 100.0o/o 

Total 5000 • Wages and Booeftts 944,351 .94 940,449.87 3,902.07 

6000 . Ambulance Operaiions 
6030 . Med. DiN>ctor F8&-non AHUC 31 ,500.00 31,500.00 0.00 100.0% 
6040 . Dispatch $«vices 19,122.34 23,500.00 -4,377.66 81 .4°/o 
6050 . Misc Reimbursements 5.00 
6100 • Station/Crew Expenses 

5100 . Unfforms & Med Tests 2,844.39 4,166.66 -1,322.27 68.3% 

6101 • Facilitiy Repair & Maintenance 1,581.23 7,833.34 ·6,252.11 20.2% 
6102. Facility Furniture 1,855.87 0.00 1,855.87 100.0% 
6110. Supp,;, Rent•~ Clean. etc 5,129.10 10,833.34 -5,704.24 47.3% 
6210 . Veh. Repair & Maintenance 15,086.29 15,000.00 86.29 100.6% 
6240. Vehicle Fuel 20,458.12 12,500.00 7,958.12 163.7o/. g 
6320 . Lioonscs and Permits 129.00 
6410 . Radios & Comm Equip 3,728.51 3,333.34 395.17 111.9% 

6510. Modical Supplies & Equip 27,324.78 20,000.00 7,324.78 136.6%1';1 



2:02 PM Coast Life Support District 

05/12118 Profit & Loss Budget Overview 
Accrual 8a$ls July 2017 through April 2018 

Jul '17 • Apr 18 Budget $ over Budget %of Budget 

Total 6100. Station/C11>w Expenses 78,137.29 73,666.68 4,470.61 106.1% 

6980. Misc. Employee Train. Exps 452.50 5,000.00 -4,547.50 9.1% 

Total 6000. Ambulance Operations 129,217.13 133,666.68 -4,449.S5 

66000 , Payroll Expenses 334.95 
6700 • Overhead/Admini$tration 

6180 , Utilities 12,230.18 10,000.00 2,230.18 122.3% 
6188, Telephone 6,889.09 5,000.00 1,889.09 137.8% 
6300 . Insurance 17,129.00 17,000.00 129.00 100.8% 
6713 , Ambulance Billing 28,487.15 32,294.16 ·3.807.01 88.2% 
6718. OfficoSupp/Equip/Softwarc 

6718.1 . Office Supplios 2,888.76 4,166.66 -1,297.90 68.9% 
6718.2. Computer Equipment 2,346.96 2,500.00 · 153.04 93.9% 
6718-3 . Sollwaro 2,s n.s3 1,312.50 1,365.33 204.0% 
6718 • Office Supp/Equip/Software • Other · 15.00 0.00 ·15.00 100.0% 

Total 6718 . Office Supp/Equip/Software 7,878.55 7,979.16 · 100.61 

6720 . Board Expenses 126.00 2,083.32 -1,957.32 6.0% 
6730 . Consult.lnts 

6734, IT 4,764.91 6,250.00 ·1 ,485.09 76.2% 
6735 · EMS Survey 1,716.65 2,916.66 -1 ,200.01 58.9% 
6737 . Financial/Bookkeeping 525.00 4,166.66 -3,641.66 12.6% 
6738- lcgal 4,096.00 8,333.34 -4,237.34 49.2o/co 
6740 , Audit 8 ,750.00 7,083.34 1,666.66 123.5% 
6741 . Tax Administration - NBS 10,634.18 8,691.66 1,942.52 122.3% 

Total 6730 . Consuhants 30,486.74 37,441.66 -6,954.92 

6742. Bank/Merchant Foos 1,231.n 833.34 404.43 148.So/o 
6755 . Property Tax Adm in 10,681 .0 1 24,166.66 -13,485.65 44.2%11 
6760 , Education/Professional Dev 643.75 2,083.34 •1,439.59 30.9% 
6765 . Election Costs/Reserve o.oo 39,166.66 -39,166.66 0.0¾fl 
6770 • Duos, Subserip: Membership 7,504.03 8,333.34 ·829.31 90.0% 
6788 . Printing & Roproduction 979.44 8,333.34 •7,353.90 11.S¾II 
6795. Travel/Transportation 3,100.87 2,500.00 600.87 124.0% 
6970. Community Dov/Training 8,941.62 8,333.32 608.30 107.3% 

TotaJ 6700 . OVerhoad/Administration 136,315.20 205,548.30 -69,233.10 

6971, IGT 0.00 
7000. Urgent Care 

7011 . Admin Salarios-Alloc to UC 18,936.70 18,936.66 0.04 100.0% 
7050 . UC Contract 628,963.30 628,948.34 14.96 100.0o/o 

Total 7000 , Urgent Care 647,900.00 647,885.00 15.00 

8000. Interest Expense 
8005 , EMS Interest Expense o.oo 1,250.00 • 1,250.00 0.0% 
8000 . Interest Expense • Other 2,609.85 2,500.00 109.85 104.4% 

T oral 8000 , Interest Expense 2,609.85 3,750.00 al,140.JS 

9000 , Other Expenses 0.00 
9500 . Depreciation Expense 76,589.34 76,765.82 -176.48 99.8% 
9999 , Prior Period Adjustment ·6,307.58 o.oo -6,307.58 

Total Expense 1,931 ,0 10.83 2,008,065.67 -n,054.84 

Net Ordinary Openotlng Surplus 184,049.54 -106,931.51 II 290,981 .05 

Net Revenue 184,049.54 ·106,931.51 290,981.05 ·172.1% 



2:02 PM 

05/12/18 
Accrual Basis 

Coast Life Support District 
Profit & Loss Budget Overview 

July 2017 through April 2018 

1. Early parcel tax paymoots to Coonty fawardod to CLSD ahead of normal payment schedule. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9 . 

NET BILLING: ' Ref Wittman YTD Report (ace 4200+Column F minus H/KJt.). 

NET BILLING: •Ret Winman YTD Report (ace 4200+Column F rrinus HIK/L). 

•6K from FY 17 CaJFiro tuol roeoncilia!ion 

Order for Medical suppli<>s. Budgeted°""' 12 months. 

Mendocino County tax foo (38%) Funds rec'd Jan' axpoct noxt fundiig in May. 

Upcoming expense 

Upcomklg expense 

$10.833/mo x1c,montns = $97,497 for Urg8'lt Care increase end cove<ecl by UC r8&""'8S. 

• 



Monthly Breakdown 
Below are the monthly responses that have been received for your service. It details the individual score for 
each question as well as the overall company score for that month. 

Jul Aug Sep Oct N<>v o., Jan Feb "" Apr 
2017 1<117 2011 20H 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 

Hclpfutness of the person you called for ambulance service 98.08 100.00 97 .50 100.00 100.00 100.00 86.11 100.00 95.4S 

Concern shown by the person you called for ambulance service 9,4.23 96.88 9b.25 100.00 75.00 100.00 90.63 100.00 92.50 

Extent to which you were told what tQ do until the ambulance 96.15 95.83 9b.25 100.00 25.00 100.00 9H4 100.00 92.50 

Extel'lt to which the Co3st Life Support ambulance arrived in a 96.43 97.22 9'.00 96.15 87.50 87.50 95.83 89.29 100.00 87.50 

O.eanlincss of the ambulance 97.92 97.22 96.88 98.08 87.50 100.00 95.8) 100.00 100.00 97.73 

Comfoft of the ride 93.18 75.11 86.96 96.l5 25.00 87.50 92.31 78.57 100.00 JZ,92 

Skill of tilt person driving: the ambulan-ce 97.73 100.00 98.91 100.00 100.00 100.00 94.23 89.29 100.00 93.18 

Skills of th~ Fire ~partment Emergency Medical Services 94.64 100,00 94.44 98.08 75.00 75.00 93.18 100.00 100.00 95.45 

Care shown by tht ™S-t lifo Soppoft mediu who arrived with 98.21 100.00 97 .92 100.00 100.00 100.00 96.43 100.00 100.00 93.75 

Degree to which the medics took your problem seriously 100.00 100.00 97.92 100.00 100.00 100.00 94.64 100.00 100.00 95.83 

Oegree to which the medic list t ned l<> you and/<>r y<XU family 9S.21 100.00 97.83 100.00 100.00 87 ,SO 96,15 100.00 100.00 95.83 

SkiU of the medics 100.00 100.00 98.96 100.00 100.00 100,00 96.43 100.00 100.00 9S.8'3 

Extent to which the medics kept you informed .iboot your 96. 15 96.$8 96.43 95.83 100.00 87.50 94.2) 100.00 100.00 9).18 

Extent to which medics includ&d y<>u in t he tteatment decisions (,18 .08 96.43 97.37 100.00 100.00 87 .so 9$.83 96.43 100.00 100.00 

Degree to which the medics relie\-ed your pain Of discomfort 97.73 96.88 95.24 93.7S 75.00 87.50 94.64 85.71 100.00 90.00 

Medics' concern for your privacy 97.92 96.88 93.75 97.92 75.00 87.50 92.31 9Z-86 100.00 87.50 

Extent t<> which medics cared for you as a person 100.00 97.U 98.8'> 100.00 100.00 87.50 96.,3 96.43 100.00 93. 75 

Profe:ssionalis.m of t he st.iff in our billing office 93.75 100.00 90.00 100.00 87.50 87.50 75.00 93.75 

Willingness of the staff in our billing office to c1ddtes.s your 9,.,, 100.00 92.SO 100.00 87.50 93. 75 100.00 93. 7S 

How well our staff wortled t<>g:etfliCr' to <:.He for you 100.00 100.00 97 ,62 97.73 75.00 87.50 89.SS 91.67 100.00 93.18 

Extent to which our st.iff castd your erttty into the medical 100.00 97 .22 96.25 97.50 75.00 87.50 91.67 91.67 100.00 92.SO 

Appropriateness or Emetgcncy Medical services provided 100.00 97 .22 96.43 95.45 75.00 87.SO 89.58 96.4) 100.00 97 .50 

Extent to whicft the services n?ce-ived were wotth the fees 95.45 96.4) 92.11 93.18 25.00 100.00 83.3) 95.83 100.00 90.6) 

Overall rating of tile care provided by our ambulance s.t-rvictS 98.21 100.00 98.81 97.73 7S.OO 100.00 90.38 100.00 100.00 91.67 

Likelihood of 1ttomrntndin9 this ambulance service to others 100.00 100.00 98.86 97,50 75.00 100.00 88.46 100.00 100.00 93.18 

Your Master score 97.S8 97.3.ti 96.17 98.16 83.06 9).18 92.8'> 95.SS 98.86 92.57 

Your Total Responses 14 9 26 13 2 2 14 7 13 



Company Comparisons - The following chart gives a comparison of t he mean score for each question as scored 
by comparable companies. Your company is highlighted. There is also a green-shaded highlight of the highest 
score for each question. This will show how you compare to similar companies. 

Helpfulness of the person you called for ambulance service 

Concern shown by the person you called for ambulance service 

Extent to which vou were told what to do until the ambulance 

Extent to which the Coast Life Support ambulance arrived in a 

Cleanliness of the ambulance 

Comfort of the ride 

Skill of the person driving the ambulance 

Skills of the fire Department Emergency Medical Services provided 

Care shown bv the Coast life Support medics who atrived with the 

Degree to which the medics took your problem seriously 

Degree to which the medics listened to you and/or vour family 

Skill of the medics 

Extent to which the medics kept vou informed about your 

Extent to which medics included you in the treatment decisions (if 

Degree to which the medics relieved your pain or discomfort 

Medics' concem for your privacy 

ElCtent to which medics cared for you as a person 

Professionalism of the staff in our billina office 

Willingness of the staff in our billing office to address '""ur needs 

How well our staff worked together to care for you 

Extent to which our staff eased vour entry into the medical facility 

Appropriateness of Emergenc.y Medical services provided 

Extent to whieh the services received were worth the fees charged 

Overall rating of the care provided by our ambulance services 

likelihood of recommending this ambulance service to othets 

Overall score 

National Rank 

Comparable Size (SmaU) Company Rank 

Your 
Comnanv 

95.45 

92.50 

92.50 

87.50 

97.73 

72.92 

93.18 

95.45 

93.75 

95.83 

95.83 

95.83 

93.18 

100.00 

90.00 

87.50 

93.75 

93.75 

93.75 

93.18 

92.50 

97.50 

90.63 

91.67 

93.18 

92.57 

57 

29 

A 

96.88 

94.44 

90.00 

90.91 

95.00 

85.00 

97.50 

0 

100.00 

95.45 

93.18 

95.45 

92.50 

95.83 

84.38 

100.00 

93.18 

87.50 

87.50 

90.00 

94.44 

97.50 

89.29 

92.SO 

92.50 

93.34 

43 

23 

• 

B 
91.94 

91.41 

90.00 

86.43 

91.45 

82.43 

89.19 

0 

90.82 

90.57 

90.57 

90.16 

89.31 

85.75 

84.12 

88.54 

90.82 

87.50 

87.50 

88.84 

88.18 

90.03 

83.37 

86.87 

87.53 

88.58 

85 

43 

Comparison Companitt 

C 

97.37 

97.06 

95.00 

96.05 

96.67 

93.33 

96.67 

0 

95.00 

94.64 

94.64 

94.64 

92.86 

91.67 

90.38 

92.31 

92.31 

86.54 

84.09 

86.67 

90.38 

91.07 

87.50 

92.86 

91.07 

92.86 

51 

26 

D E 
94.59 96.88 

93.57 96.88 

93.94 95.00 

94.05 98.61 

93.59 97.22 

91.03 93.06 

94.23 97.22 

0 0 

94.38 100.00 

94.38 98.08 

93.75 98.08 

93.13 100.00 • 

92.76 98.08 

94.35 100.00 

94.85 97.92 

94.29 96.15 

94.74 98.08 

88.24 100.00 . 
89.71 I 100.00 

93.75 I 100.00 

93.42 

94.85 

89.06 

94.29 

93.06 

93.46 

40 

21 

92.38 

98.08 

97.22 " 

91.14 

98.08 

97.15 

11 

8 

F 

90.00 

90.00 

95.00 

91.67 

93.75 

90.63 

97.22 

0 

93.75 

96.88 

93.75 

96.88 

89.29 

100.00 

95.00 

95.83 

96.88 

100.00 

87.50 

96.43 

96.43 

96.43 

85.00 

96.88 

96.88 

94.50 

33 

20 

r 
~ 



b? 

CUMULATIVE AMBULANCE DATA 

Cumuladve Transnorts Julv Auaust Sontomber October November December Januarv Fabruarv 

2007 • 2015 Averonad 40 69 93 127 151 182 223 249 
2015 • 2016 52 91 130 164 192 227 274 303 
2016 -2017 47 94 131 168 213 261 306 343 
2017 -2018 52 111 147 186 252 288 334 372 

Cumulative BIiiabie Incidents 
2016 • 20 17 BR/able 63 I 121 I 179 I 236 I 295 340 I 398 I 447 
2017 • 2018 Billable 60 I 138 192 I 223 I 278 325 I 368 I 421 

CUMULATIVE Transport & Billable Incident Volume by Fiscal Years 

700 

eoo 

March Anrll 
275 300 
352 390 
391 431 
422 473 

I 503 558 
I 493 549 

I 

I 

Mau 
330 
447 
459 

594 I 

I 

,,, .. .... _____ , 
---• --

soo 

400 

300 

200 

100 -

0 
Ju'y 

,,;u 
_.,::-' 

-Ill!',' 
,,,::;~ .. -,, 

,,,,,,, ,,' 
_.,--- , ...o' .... ___ ,,,,, -

,,,, , a '"" -
r --,,-.---

-::JI".-.!"'_:,_: ,---... 
, ... ' a '' ...... ,: ... ,' 

---~::e--' 
,?;I:'-..,------

_ ... , ... ,, -.,,.,. .. .... 

A.uaust Septcmb~ 

- F'l07•)S Tt a'l${)CltH l<tfet11gc 

October 

- 2¢ 1S· 2<06 

Nowmbor 0oc..-,,., 
- ---• 2016 · 20::7 Si!l~c 

Janu2')' Fel:ruacy Mar<:h April 

- 2016·2017 --c-•20l7• l013B!lhbtc 

M,v Jure 

_ ,011 . ,0111 

June 
362 
489 
508 

655 

-l 



~ 

MONTHLY AMBULANCE DATA 

Monthlv Trans._.rts Julv Au~•st Sentember October November December Janua••u Februarv March 

2007 - 2015 Avoroned 40 29 24 34 24 31 41 26 26 
2015 -2016 52 39 39 34 28 35 47 29 49 
2016 · 2017 47 47 37 37 45 48 45 37 48 
2017 • 2018 52 57 36 39 39 36 46 38 50 

Mo_nlhly __ (!lUabl& Incidents 
2016 - 2017 BH/ab/o 63 58 58 57 59 4§_ 5~ 4f! 56 
2017 • 2018 BU/able 60 78 54 31 Si 47 43 53 72 

90 

80 -

70 

60 

so 

40 

30 

20 

10 

0 

,fl, ,, \ , '--, -- \ , \ 

MONTHLY Transport & Billable Incident Volume by Fiscal Years 

_,Cl, ,, ,, 
,, ', 

•,! .. .., ', -----"""" (j ~----... .;..., _____ ~,• --------- rJ,. ', 

, ', , ' ,, ,, 
, ' , . , ,, Alt•-----.l:'l 

b , ... ,~~ 
I ' \ . , 

\ , 
\ , 

\ , 
\ -'~ 

\ 

, .......... _, __ , ' 
...... .,.u ,, ,,,, ____ ..,,,,. ' 
,,....._.,,., _-J .,, ,· ,, ,,.. ~ :. ..... _"'-:' 

Jt.ly A.ugust September October Nove«t:er Oecerrber Jan1.1ary FcWJary March AptH 

- Fl07·15Tr.:n~ortiAve~ie - 2on - 2016 • --• 2016· 20118Ul•ble - 2016·2Cll7 - -.,.. • Wl7 • ;.ma 8!11.iblc 

Anni Mav Juno 
25 30 32 
38 57 42 
40 28 49 
51 

55 36 61 
5~ 

W-av June 

- 2017-2(18 



5/9/18 

CLSD RUN DATA for the PRECEEDING 12 MONTHS 

MONTH A/O PCR ALS ALS>BLS BLS BLS>ALS TOTAL LANDING DRY RUN T&R TO RCMS FROM RCMS 
MOST AUTHO;;zro l'AllnlT AOVA~O '""' CMICUlEO :,_ "'''"" OW tR CAI< U H un TM ~SPOltTS ~ QN Ats 8lS Ats BtS 

ONTOP DISPATCHED RECORD SOPPOIIJ '""""" - J'IOUTE 
\'~ r I "'U r I YN< "·"· 'l'H r Yn r 1u r Ye.,; "" v .. , ,.,. 

"" "H' 'r~tif 
Cvrr•lll Ciwtrl 0J'l'erl CUm:r. Cl.srien! ,~1·11~1 0."frll.'ll , .. , .• ..,, ,.,. .. (\II'\'~( ~,e·: C.,,111111 ' 0Jl't ~·1 c,-,- ''"' 

,,.,. .P.•i.,t - ""' '"'" '"" ""' "''' ?,ic,., ,,,,. rri;,r P•<."f 

18-Apr 70 
I /8;1 58 58 34 I 27 4 2 4 13 0 1 51 40 10 4 25 . 23 20 18 0 2 2 0 10 10 3 • 6 

' 
18-Mar 97 70 ' 37 1 13 1 50 10 25 20 0 3 10 2 

r 9 1 60 r 34 4 14 4 48 8 23 )2 1 0 6 6 

18-Feb 63 5 3 ' 3 1 2 7 2 38 6 7 13 2 1 4 4 
72 S3 I 28 .3 9 1 37 3 IS 16 4 0 4 3 

' 18-Jan 80 59 36 2 I 10 2 46 2 16 13 7 0 8 7 
67 S3 28 1 8 0 . 36 5 17 11 s 2 5 3 

17-Dec 67 53 28 1 8 0 3 6 5 17 11 5 2 5 3 
95 92 32 6 18 3 48 7 2S 10 4 l 3 4 

~ 
1 7-Nov 90 6 1 31 0 ' 18 1 49 s 29 1 2 3 1 9 12 

89 58 33 2 12 1 4S s 27 15 s 1 s 6 
i 

17-0ct 8 1 54 23 2 ;:, 4 16 0 39 4 21 15 2 1 2 9 
83 S7 24 13 1 37 6 22 20 3 0 2 5 

17-Sep 60 48 2 8 ;· 1 6 ' . 

1 I o 34 5 12 1 4 2 0 8 4 
74 , 56 25 1 r 12 37 4 15 , 19" 1 0 8 8 

• ' 17-Aug 121 , 77 42 3 15 2 57 3 38 22 7 2 7 6 
' 9-0 61 ~ 3 12 I 2 47 8 23 10 6 1 6 5 

17-Jul 98 Los 6 2 3 7 4 15 1 I 52 9 3 1 
i 15 4 0 8 7 

71 30 7 ' , 17 1 47 9 I 31 17 ·s l 6 6 

99 
I 

61 !; 3 3 . 4 16 2 49 7 2 8 
I 

15 2 1 6 10 17-Jun I 
' 90 63 26 6 16 2 42 8 ' 18 23 1 0 3 4 

' 1 7-May 67 I 101 
42 20 2 ' s 0 28 7 21 I 21 0 0 5 1 

17 32 , 10 25 0 57 5 
' 24 

10 3 0 3 4 

993 I 1042 698 1 759 380 I 354 26 1 49 133 I 169 12 I 16 529 1 S21 13 1 12 270 J 2o1 191 1 181 34 I 40 13 I G 82 I 61 68 I 60 

NO PCR Ats ALS>BI.S Bts 81.S>AlS TOTAL l2 ORY RUN T&J\ TO RCl'--115 FROM RCMS 

A U SMAOEO COLUM ,IS ARE PREVIOUS VEA#tOATA 



District Administrator and Operations Manager's Report 
May 2018 

District Administrator 
• Attended the National Rural EMS & Care Conference in Tucson, AZ.. Some of 

the themes emerging are: 
o Healthcare is transforming: moving from Fee-For-Service to a system that 

rewards value. It is "Outcomes and performance data" as well as "Patient
centered" - centric 

o EMS services are expanding through Mobile Integrated Healthcare -
Community Paramedic (MIH-CP) programs that offer post-discharge 
follow up and preventive care; chronic disease management and support; 
and offer alternative transportation or referral to community health and 
social services resources 

o New models emerging: 
• Treat and Refer - Field treatment • refer to other resources (e.g., 

possibly the following day). These are protocol driven. 
• Anthem Blue Cross - paying 75% of the reimbursement of a typical 

transport to NOT transport. The current EMS model is designed for 
EMS to transport or the patient signs out Against Medical Advice. 
Many transports do not result in an "emergent'' need for treatment. 
This model incurs a transport and Emergency Room visit. Results 
in cost savings of non-transport and helping funnel patient into most 
appropriate resources 

• IT advances improving field treatment: use of drones, Google glass, 
dictation microphones, $5-10 disposable devices placed on the 
chest that can perform an EKG, take blood pressure, heart rate, 
oxygen saturation, etc. Field crews "push" the data to platforms the 
ED docs can "pull" when available - provides pictures on scene, 
read EKG, etc. This is supported by a rapidly growing federal 
funded cellular tower network prioritizing EMS traffic. 

• Attended EMS grant writing workshop 
• AB2262 - sponsored by Jim Wood has cleared the Assembly and in the Senate 

- assigned to committee 
• Video Teleconferencing equipment set for installation on Wed June 13th 
• Continuing to attend Sonoma County Ambulance Ordinance meetings 
• Supervisor Lynda Hopkins - $12K Tourist Mitigation Funds to support our EMT 

Safety net program - set for final approval vote of entire BOS first week of June 
• The Rural Emergency Medical Center Act of 2018: American Hospital 

Association spent the last two years studying the lack of access to rural 
hospitals. Recommendations made to MediCare. It resulted in legislation 
currently being considered by Congress (H.R.5678) to amend title XVIII of the 
Social Security Act to provide for coverage of rural emergency medical center 
services under the Medicare Program. If this passes, would no doubt resolve the 
issue of getting reimbursement for Medicare patients transported to RCMS. The 



text of bill was just released. For more information see attached sheet or internet 
search H.R.5678. 

• Medicare just released a Rural Health Strategy aimed to inform the development 
of a strategic plan to improve health care in rural America. To see the plan, go to 
this website: 

https://www.cms.gov/About-CMS/Agency-lnformation/OMH/Downloads/Rural-Strategy-
2018.pdf 

Deployment / Staffing 
• ALS (M-120) staffed 100% BLS (B-121) Staffed 100% 
• Second out paramedic has launched for April 90 % coverage. May schedule has 

75% coverage right now. Working on a standard report format for M-122 
deployment. 

Facilities 
• Projects that are scheduled for May early June include; wood refinishing, 

weeding, drip system/ some planting and the bay bathroom will get new floors 
and paint. 

• Two bids coming for parking lot options to include more parking 

Vehicles/Equipment 
• All vehicles/ equipment are in good working order. 
• The Ford ambulance needs a catalytic converter. We have tried other options 

which proved to be temporary. Estimate is around $3,500 
• New ECG monitor arrived and in service 

Community events I Training 

• We had a Mendocino communication drill. HAM operators were present at CLSD. 
The scenario was a contagious disease spread. Good overall drill. 

• CLSD participated in the Mendonoma Fire preparedness forum at the Gualala 
Community center 

• CLSD and CVEMS sponsored the BLS update class. All EMTs are updating for 
expanded scope by July 1 

• RCMS is scheduling monthly CPR classes with us now. 
• EMT students have started their ambulance time with CLSD and Fort Bragg 

ambulance and clinical time at RCMS and MCDH. Finals are scheduled for early 
June 

• Day in the park scheduled for Saturday April 21. Julienne King staffed the event 
• TSR disaster group was taught 9 Ways to Save a Life. Approximately 30 in 

attendance 
• CLSD BOD taught / demo 9 Ways to Save a Life at April BOD 
• Horicon School is scheduling a class for late May 



Nearly 60 million Americans live in rural areas and depend on their hospital as an important – and often only source 
of care in their communities. They rely on their hospital as a vital community hub during emergencies and natural 
disasters. Because rural hospitals care for patients who are often older and sicker, and more dependent on federal 
programs such as Medicare and Medicaid (which reimburse below the cost of care), they face financial constraints 
and instabilities which make them vulnerable to service cutbacks or even closure. Remote location, low-patient 
volumes, regulatory burden and workforce shortages also contribute to rural hospitals’ financial instability. 

During the 1990s, Congress created the critical access hospital (CAH) program and other special payment programs 
to account for the unique circumstances of providing care in rural communities. Over time, as health care delivery 
has shifted to focus on value over volume, and more services are provided in the outpatient setting; many of these 
special rural programs are insufficient and/or outdated. 

The American Hospital Association’s  Task Force on Ensuring Access in Vulnerable Communities issued a report 
in 2016, recommending Congress establish new models of care to provide communities options to protect and 
stabilize access to health care services. The Rural Emergency Medical Center (REMC) Act of 2018 would create a new 
designation under the Medicare program allowing hospitals meeting certain criteria to transition to a 24/7 emergency 
medical center with enhanced reimbursement and transportation to higher acuity facilities, as needed.

Background: Rural Emergency Medical Center Model

Why Is a Rural Emergency Medical Center Designation Needed?

The future of rural health care includes “right-sizing” the health care infrastructure and services to better align 
with the needs of communities and to keep pace with the ongoing transformation of health care delivery.    

The current reimbursement model, which rewards fee-for-service inpatient care, is not working in certain 
vulnerable communities due to the unique circumstances of providing care in rural areas.

The establishment of a rural emergency medical center (REMC) designation under the Medicare program would 
help ensure patients in rural communities maintain access to essential emergency and outpatient services, 
while providing enhanced transportation to inpatient hospitals.

• REMC Designation

Fast Facts: The Rural Emergency Medical Center Act

The Rural Emergency Medical 
Center Act of 2018

Ensuring Access in Vulnerable Communities

© 2018 American Hospital Association   |   May 2018
www.aha.org

The REMC Act would establish a new rural facility 
designation under the Medicare program, allowing 
facilities meeting certain requirements to provide 24/7 
emergency department care and other outpatient 
services in vulnerable rural communities and receive 
enhanced reimbursement rates. 

REMCs would be required to have established 
protocols to transport patients to an inpatient hospital 
if needed.  
 
 

https://www.aha.org/issue-landing-page/2016-11-16-ensuring-access-vulnerable-communities-taskforce-report-and-resources


• REMC Services

© 2018 American Hospital Association   |   May 2018
www.aha.org

– 24/7 emergency services: REMCs would 
operate a 24/7 emergency department and 
have established protocols and arrangements 
for transporting patients to inpatient acute care 
hospitals (and trauma centers) as needed. 

– Outpatient services: REMCs could provide 
the type of medical and other health services 
that a hospital provides on an outpatient 
basis to Medicare beneficiaries. These include 
observation and diagnostic services.

– Post-acute care: Skilled nursing care may 
be furnished in a separately licensed skilled 
nursing facility (SNF) unit. 

– Telehealth: A REMC is considered a Medicare 
telehealth “originating site” at which Medicare 
beneficiaries may receive covered telehealth 
services.

• REMC Requirements

A rural emergency medical center must meet the 
following requirements:

– Provide 24-hour emergency medical care and 
observation care (not to exceed, on an annual 
per patient average, 24 hours or more than one 
midnight;

– Not provide any acute care inpatient beds; 

– Have protocols in place for timely transfer 
of patients who require acute care inpatient 
services or other inpatient services;

– Provide ambulance transport services for 
patients requiring inpatient hospital services; it 
must have a transfer agreement with a level I or 
II trauma center;

– Make an election to be designated as a REMC;

– Be licensed or approved to operate as a REMC 
by the State involved; and

– Be certified by the Secretary of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) as meeting the above 
requirements and meeting HHS requirements 
for staff training and education.

– Meet Medicare conditions of participation 
required by CAHs with exceptions (e.g., 
providing inpatient care).

A rural emergency medical center may include a 
separately licensed SNF unit. 

• REMC Reimbursment 

Payment for rural emergency medical center services 
consists of: 

– The Medicare outpatient prospective payment 
system (PPS) plus an additional amount to take 
into account fixed costs and the low volume of 
services these centers provide.

REMCs that establish a separately licensed SNF unit 
will be paid at 110 percent of the amount of payment 

otherwise applicable under the Medicare SNF PPS for 
those services. 

Payment for ambulance services is set at 105 percent 
of the otherwise applicable Medicare ambulance fee 
schedule amount for the patient transport from the 
REMC to a hospital or CAH.


	board-packet-may-21-2018
	20180521_CMS rural-emergency-medical-ctr-act-2018



